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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Calvary Episcopal Church is located on the east side of South Fourth Street in Louisville.
Two ecclesiastical structures currently listed on the National Register are within the same
block; Temple Adath Israel (entered on the Register December 31, 1974) is to the southeast,
and the Church of the Messiah (entered on the National Register Aprit 21, 1976), isto
the north.

Stylistically, Calvary Church is Victorian Gothic Revival. The structure faces west and
was erected in two stages. The first occured from 1872-76 and involved the construction

of the sanctuary and part of the nave including the apsidal transepts and octagonal crossing
(see floor plan). W. H. Redin provided the design. The second stage, 1886-88, dealt

with the nave's completion and the construction of the asymmetrical west front. Henry

P. McDonald was the architect for these portions. Combined, the two phases conform to
the basic Latin cross plan. Locally quarried Indiana limestone was the material used for
each, and McDonald was careful to provide a total harmony between the separate phases:
"Except for the slight change in color of the masonry at the juncture of the two phases of
construction, there is no visual indication of the different architectural hands in the design.'

The main facade consists of a central gable pierced by a massive equilateral arch window,
and two flanking towers of differing shapes and heights. These elements of the exterior
announce the three-part division of the interior. A modest porte-cochere is attached to the
square tower at the southwest corner where a spire achieves a height of 250 feet. The
entrance occupies a centered position, and its arched portion is enveloped by a rather plain
accolade, as is the entrance to the square tower.

The north and south sides beyond the towers are alike. Gabled roof projections foretell the
narthex, and extending beyond the walls are the three-sided ends of the transept. Further
east on either side is a square~shaped projection set at a diagonal; these house the vestry
and organ.

Three aisles run the length of the nave and crossing, and a gallery is above the narthex.
Between the nave and chancel, the crossing is treated as a giant octagon in which the
transepts appear as great bays to the north and south. The chancel is recessed to remove
it from the congregation, yet set behind a W1de arch that seems to include it as part of

the main octagon. : ~ : ‘
The ceiling rises to a height of 70 feet and is treated with superb timberwork whose execution
is strlkmgly similar to that of the-hammerbeam roof of the medieval Westminstér Hall in
London.2 The tracery of the timberwork of Calvary Church is enhanced by’ light ‘coming
through almost nonvigible dormers.

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Calvary Episcopal Church is significant in having preserved to a large degree the flavor of
the Victorian Gothic Revival. It remains today as one of the most distinctive and best pre-
served of the series of churches erected in Louisville during the late 19th century (five of
these being on Fourth Street). From the beginning, the structure was intended to be among
the country's most magnificent edifices.

In 1860, the members of the congregation of Sehon Methodist Church seceded from the
Methodist Church. They were accepted into the Episcopal Church and continued to meet

in the Sehon Chapel until 1872, when the Reverend W, H. Platt inspired the vestry to under-
take a new, larger church at a new location, Fourth Street between York and Breckinridge.

The commission was awarded to W. H. Redin, a prominent local architect with a reputation
for ecclesiastical designs. He was responsible for St. Japies Church in Pewee Valley, Several
characteristic commercial cast-iron fronts on Main Street, and enlargements of Grace

Church and Christ Church Episcopal (listed on the National Register August 14, 1973).

The architect was confronted by two particular conditions in designing Calvary. There was
the '"peculiar position' of the congregation's theological point of view: it was neither "high"
nor "'low". This meant that equal emphasis had to be allowed for both ritual and preaching.
The second condition was that the edifice was to be erected in two stages, the first to include
the sanctuary and part of the nave; the second, the remainder of the nave and the main West
front.

Redin's solution to these requirements was an ingenious and effective one. He combined the
traditional longitudinal forms with its relatively narrow nave and transepts, suited for
liturgical processions and with the broad polygonal or circular form then popular for audi-
toria. He did this by treating the crossing between nave and chancel as a giant octagon in
“which the transepts appear as great bays to the North and South. The chancel is recessed
to remove it from the congregation, yet set behind a wide arch that seems to include it as
part of the main octagon. The rector's study and organ loft:are also located inpolygenal
recesses. Thus, the church as originally built in 1874 was a vast centralized auditory.

The second phase of construction was delayed for a decade. The church itself was completed
from 1885 to 1889 by the firm of McDonald Brothers.

(continued)
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In 1891 the chancel was altered to accomodate the church's final completion. Its screen
was removed and marble steps were installed. The structure's windows that date from
various periods contribute much to its character: "Both their subjects and their tech-
nique represent the different attitudes and achievements of the Late Victorian era."S

Footnotes:

1
Cornerstone Centennial Celebration Brochure, (Louisville Calvary Episcopal
Church, 1972), p.8

2mhid. , p.4.

3Ibid. , p.g.
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In spite of the later cornerstone calling McDonald "Architect, ' the front was actually
executed according to Redin's original concepts. The wide nave, in which aisles are only
suggested by pendants, continues the magnificent English medieval-inspired half-timbered
roof of the octagon, thus integrating it with the now longitudinal nave. Both the southern
spire and the northern octagonal turret are entirely of stone.

Calvary also has some superb church fittings, particularly a rather Byzantine brass prophyry,
and mosaic pulpit, and a great range of stained glass, from the garish early Victorian
survivors of Sehon Chapel, though unexcelled examples of the work of the Tiffany studios

and their local imitators, to handsome examples of the later '""Renaissance' style of painted
glass.

So ambitious was the early congregation that a bishop's crozier crowns the lower stone
spire, and until alterations occured in the 1920g, a bishop's seat was in the chancel's center
-~ both reflections of the unfulfilled hope that the church would become the home of the
bishop of the Diocese of Kentucky.
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